Dear Vaccinator
Re: Avoiding Covid-19 vaccine wastage / Use of alternative Vaccines 
Both Pfizer and AstraZeneca (AZ) Covid-19 vaccines have an overage included in each vial.
Pfizer stock allocated to the Board and to the clinics is based on 6 doses a vial.

Whilst not used for planning stock volumes for a clinic, this does mean that for AZ an 11th or even 12th dose from a vial with 10 doses. Or 9 or 10 from an 8 dose vial
Each vaccine has a limited life at room temperature with the diluted Pfizer vaccine being particularly challenging as it cannot be transported once diluted and has a shelf life of 6 hours at room temperature.

To help manage vaccine supply during a clinic session, the following should be considered:

· Monitor attendance rate to help predict vaccine requirements throughout clinic
· Review no. of doses each vaccinator has remaining at regular intervals against clinic list and vaccine viability in line with SOP i.e. Pfizer 2 hrs pre dilution/6 hrs at room temp, Astra Zeneca 6 hrs at room temp, 
· Build an appropriate reserve list of patients or staff who are eligible and phone on the day requesting vaccination, prioritising against JCVI priority groups.
Where a planned vaccination session has delivered its planned activity – and where remaining vaccine that cannot be used within the time window of expiry (Pfizer 6 hours post dilution) is available it is recommended that those planning clinics have a local plan for how ad-hoc opportunistic vaccination should be approached to ensure fairness in terms of opportunity, e.g. a “standby list”.  For mass vaccination centres this should be either staff who have to receive their second dose or those on the clinic list for the next day. 
Where there are no available second dose recipients and the vaccine will be wasted otherwise it is permissible to give a first dose to those eligible in a JCVI priority group in order of risk groups 1-9:
	1
	Residents in a care home for older adults

Staff working in care homes for older adults

	2
	All those 80 years of age and over

Frontline health and social care workers

	3
	All those 75 years of age and over

	4
	All those 70 years of age and over
Clinically extremely vulnerable individuals (not including those under 16 years of age)

	5
	All those 65 years of age and over

	6
	Adults aged 16 to 65 years in an at-risk group and unpaid carers 

	7
	All those 60 years of age and over

	8
	All those 55 years of age and

	9
	All those 50 years of age and over

	10
	All those 40 years of age and over 


In a GP practice if a first dose is given to avoid vaccine wastage, this should be from within the above existing priority groups 1-9 (i.e. not under 40s until they are being invited to community clinics). 
If new first doses are carried out, the details of vaccination (Patient name, CHI, date of vaccination, vaccine) should be sent to the contact centre so they can be scheduled in for second doses in the community clinics by emailing ggc.covidvaccinationcontactcentre@ggc.scot.nhs.uk.
For AZ vaccine the storage window is 6 hours post first vial puncture at 2-25C. Where a vaccinator or team are faced with a situation of certain waste the guidance above should be followed.  However, please bear in mind the AZ vaccine can be moved between doses.
If nearing the end of the storage window of 6 hours and there are any un-punctured vials, these should be clearly marked as quarantined and stored in vaccine fridge.  The Public Health Pharmacy Support Unit should then be contacted re. a risk assessment being to determine if this vaccine can be used as “first use” in a subsequent vaccination clinic.
Mixed doses
The following is taken from the Green Book and is included in the PGD: - 

“For individuals who started the schedule and who attend for vaccination at a site where the same vaccine is not available, or if the first product received is unknown, it is reasonable to offer one dose of the locally available product to complete the schedule. This option is preferred if the individual is likely to be at immediate high risk or is considered unlikely to attend again. “ 

Every effort should be made to arrange for citizens to receive the same vaccine for a second dose. However if this is not possible, then as stated above, a different second dose can be given. Please note, the PGDs do not exclude giving a different vaccine for the second dose. 
Every effort should be made to arrange for citizens to receive the same vaccine for a second dose – however for housebound and care home patients if this is not possible then the Clinical Director of the HCSP should confirm that a different vaccine can be given. 
Public Health advice is also available

J Reid    Service manager COVID vaccination                  Dr G Penrice Immunisation Coordinator 
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